

Northern New Mexico Citizens' Advisory Board 1660 Old Pecos Trail, Ste. B Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505 (505) 989-1662 www.nnmcab.org

# **Minutes:**

Northern New Mexico Citizens' Advisory Board Meeting March 29, 2006 2:00 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. Jemez Complex, Santa Fe Community College 6401 Richards Avenue Santa Fe, New Mexico

# Attending:

### Members in Attendance:

- 1. J. D. Campbell, Chair
- 2. Grace Perez, Vice Chair
- 3. Donald Jordan
- 4. Chris Timm
- 5. Pam Henline
- 6. Darlene Strosnider
- 7. Sammy Quintana
- 8. Mary Pat Kramer
- 9. David Church
- 10. Fran Berting
- 11. Kenn Riordan
- 12. Richard Deertrack
- 13. Erlinda Gonzales
- 14. Jon Rudnick

#### Members Absent:

- 1. Ray Lorretto (excused)
- 2. Jim Janis (excused)
- 3. Barbara Gonzales

Deputy Designated Federal Officer (DDFO): Christina Houston, DOE

### NNMCAB Staff:

Menice Santistevan, Executive Director

Grace Roybal, Office Administrator Lorelei Novak, Manager of Technical Programs and Outreach Eddie Roybal, Sound Technician

### Guests in Attendance:

- 1. Frank Bosilerac, DOE/AL/ABQ
- 2. Troy Hill, EPA/Region 6
- 3. Sadaf Cameron, CCNS
- 4. Sheri Kotowski, ENV-ERS
- 5. Veronica Rodriquez, Senator Domenici's Office
- 6. Rich Cunningham, Public
- 7. Lorrie Bonds-Lopez, LANL/ENV
- 8. Dan Cox, LANL- Nuclear Waste Operations
- 9. Greg Mello, LASG
- 10. David Gregory, DOE/LASO
- 11. Roger Snodgrass, Los Alamos Monitor
- 12. John Arnold, Albuquerque Journal
- 13. Gabriella Lopez Escobedo, LANL ENV-ERS
- 14. Chris Romero, Congressman Tom Udall's Office
- 15. Unrecognizable Signature, LANL ENV-ERS
- 16. Linda Deertrack, Public
- 17. Mike Kennicott, LATA
- 18. Trish Williams-Mello, LASG
- 19. Dale Bignell, Washington Group
- 20. Roger Little, NNSA
- 21. Jim Orban, DOE
- 22. Elisabeth Stow, LASG
- 23. David Stephenson, LASG
- 24. Mark Bremer, Madrid Landowner Association
- 25. Pete Maggi, North Wind
- 26. John Bukowski, North Wind

#### **AGENDA**

-	a 11		$\sim$	
	( 'all	to	Inc	ar
I.	Call	LO '	OLU	ıcı

a. Establishment of Quorum

Christina Houston

- b. Role Call
- c. Excused Absences
- II. Welcome and Introduction

J. D. Campbell

- a. Approval of Agenda
- b. Approval of Minutes of January 25, 2006
- III. Board Business / Reports
  - Old Business

a. Report from DDFO

Bi-annual Assessment

b. Report from Chair

Christina Houston Christina Houston

J. D. Campbell

c. Report from Executive Director

Menice Santistevan

- IV. Committee Reports
  - 1. Community Involvement Committee
    - Sammy Quintana
  - 2. Environmental Monitoring, Surveillance and Remediation Committee
    - Pam Henline
  - 3. Waste Management Committee
    - Donald Jordan
  - 4. Ad Hoc Committee on Bylaws and Administrative Procedures
    - Donald Jordan
- V. Reports from Ex-Officio Members

EPA Rich Mayer
 UC/LANL Ken Hargis
 NMED James Bearzi

VI. DOE/LASO and UC/LANL Business

Ed Wilmot/Gene Rodrieguez

- LANL Five Year Plan
- FY '07 Budget
- Role and Future of the NNMCAB
- What Issues Would DOE Like the CAB to Concentrate On Over the Next Fiscal Year?
- Closure and Expansion of Area G.
- Groundwater Issues
- Other Issues

# VII. PUBLIC COMMENT

- 1. Greg Mello
- 2. Madrid Land Owner's Association
- VIII. Consideration and Action on CAB Letter to Senator Pete Domenici
  - IX. DOE/LASO and UC/LANL Presentation
    - Progress and Alternatives for Closure of MDA-L and MDA-G in the Corrective Measures Evaluations, for submittal to NMED, Jim Orban & Dave McInroy.
  - X. Response to NNMCAB Recommendations, Gene Rodriguez.
  - XI. Adjournment Christina Houston

# Minutes:

3 I. Call to Order

The regular bi-monthly meeting of the Northern New Mexico Citizens' Advisory Board (NNMCAB or CAB) meeting was held on Wednesday, March 29, 2006 at the Santa Fe Community College, Jemez Complex in Santa Fe, New Mexico. The Chair, J. D. Campbell presided. Ms. Houston, DDFO, called the March 29, 2006 meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. Ms. Houston stated on behalf of the Department of Energy (DOE), the Northern New Mexico Citizens' Advisory Board (NNMCAB or CAB) meeting was called to order. Ms. Houston stated that the regular meeting of the NNMCAB was open to the public and posted in the Federal Register in accordance with the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

a. Role Call

Ms. Novak counted 14 Board members in attendance at the meeting.

b. Establishment of Quorum

Ms. Houston stated that Board members in attendance established a quorum for conducting Board business.

c. Excused Absences

Ms. Houston received requests for excused absences from Mr. Janis and Mr. Loretto. Both CAB member requests for excused absences were granted.

21 II. Welcome and Introductions

The Chair welcomed Board members and guests to the March 29, 2006 CAB meeting. Dr. Campbell introduced Mr. Gene Rodriguez, the new acting Los Alamos Site Office Manager, to the Board. Mr. Rodriguez replaced Mr. Ordaz, DOE. Dr. Campbell also introduced Mr. Roger Little, DOE/ Albuquerque Service Center, who will be assisting Mr. Rodriguez with CAB. The Chair asked for introductions from guests and CAB members present.

a. Approval of Agenda

J. D. Campbell, Chair, called for any modifications to the meeting agenda or a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Jordan made a motion to approve the agenda and Mr. Church seconded the motion. As all were in favor, the agenda was approved as final.

b. Approval of Minutes of January 25, 2006

Dr. Campbell asked the Board to approve the draft minutes from the January 25, 2006 CAB meeting prepared by Ms. Novak. With minor editorial changes noted, Ms. Henline moved that the Board approve the January 25, 2006 CAB minutes, as amended. Ms. Strosnider seconded the motion. As all were in favor, the amended minutes were accepted as final.

# 39 III. Board Business / Reports

### Old Business

Mr. Timm asked the Membership to revisit Draft Resolution 2006-01RS that was tabled at the January 25, 2006 CAB until after Mr. Wilmot speaks later in the program. With no objections the CAB agreed to reconsider draft Resolution 2006-1RS after Mr. Wilmot addressed the Board.

Mr. Timm asked the Board to consider and act upon Draft Resolution 2006-01RS, "to include the Northern New Mexico Citizens' Advisory Board in the Award Fee Evaluation Process for the LANL M&O Contractor." The primary author, Mr. Timm, would like the CAB to be

included in the "process whereby DOE determines the amount of the award fee earned by the M&O contractor based upon formal performance evaluations and assessments at stated intervals." The Board discussed the resolution. Mr. Janis made comments by email dated 1-23-06 stating his appreciation for Mr. Timm's resolution regarding the CAB having input to the new M&O contractor's award fee determination, but he stated concerns that the resolution raises several issues for the CAB. Specifically, the NNMCAB having an input to the new M&O contractor's award fee has (1) no legal precedent, (2) no DOE precedent, and (3) may be considered a conflict of interest under the Board's stated charter.

Mr. Janis suggested as an alternative to Mr. Timm's draft resolution that the CAB could consider writing a "report card" for the M&O contractor every 6 or 12 months. The report card could be graded on criteria that the CAB develops within its' purview and independent of the M&O Contractor's award fees and send this report card to the M&O contractor, to DOE and to the public. "This would allow the Board to consider factors such as the contractor's attitudes about public involvement and participation that are usually not part of an M&O contractor's award fee determination." (Full text of comments submitted Mr. Janis regarding Resolution 2006-01RS have been placed on file.)

Mr. Timm agreed that Mr. Janis had good comments but he still wanted the full CAB to review the resolution and participate in the discussion. Ms. Houston suggested the resolution required further research prior to the CAB making a final decision. She stated that DOE headquarters wants the CAB to be careful to remain within their charter. Dr. Campbell agreed with Mr. Janis that the CAB could prepare a report card for the new contractor to structure the CAB's input in an appropriate way. Mr. Timm maintained that the March 17, 2004 CAB Charter did not preclude CAB involvement with award fees for EM Contractors.

Dr. Berting moved to "table the resolution to the March meeting or until the CAB receives further information on this issue, for example: precedence." Mr. Church seconded the motion." The motion to table the resolution passed by a unanimous show of hands."

-Excerpt from January 25, 2006 CAB meeting minutes.

## a. Report from DDFO

# Ms. Houston reported on the activities of the DDFO since the January 25, 2006 CAB meeting. Her report is summarized below:

- Nomination packets for continuing Board members have been sent to DOE Headquarters for review.
- She asked the Executive Committee to include a review of a 5 year plan of activities for the Board at the May retreat. Mr. Wilmot will also provide comments on what activities the Board can engage in to be more effective with the DOE. Mr. Wilmot will also address DOE priorities.
- **Bi-annual Assessment**—Ms. Houston suggested the Board consider building strategic planning into their Work Plans and to include a biannual assessment of progress and initiatives to keep the Committees focused and to avoid 'burnout' and to keep the Board on track.

## b. Report from Chair

# Dr. Campbell reported activities of the Chair since the January 25, 2005 Board meeting:

Dr. Campbell met with Ed Wilmot, Manager LASO, in February of 2006 to discuss Groundwater Issues and Monitoring Wells, CAB Resolutions 2006-1 through 4, DOE/LASO support of NNMCAB, status of Staff Support Contract and Budget, upgrade to NNMCAB computers and new Laptop, status of DOE responses to CAB recommendations, introduction of Gene Rodriguez as CAB Point of Contact, plans for Groundwater Forum, NMCAB Retreat in May, plans for SSAB meetings in Santa Fe in September 2006, proposal for Groundwater Workshop with NAS Committee.

Dr. Campbell worked with CAB staff on the organization of the Groundwater Forum, developed draft agenda, established the final date for the Forum as May 17. The Forum location was determined to be held in Los Alamos. An organizing committee was

established and Ms. Novak developed a Public Outreach Plan and promotional materials for the Forum.

Additional meetings were attended on February 8, 2006 with: NMED Secretary Curry, Veronica Rodriquez from Senator Domenici's office, Chris Romero and Sarah Cobb of Congressman Udall's office, and with Governor James Mountain of San Ildefonso Pueblo.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7 8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21 22 23

24 25 26

## c. Report from Executive Director

# Ms. Santistevan reported on activities of the NNMCAB Executive Director since the January 25, 2006 Board meeting.

## Ms. Santistevan's report is reprinted below:

"Board Membership: Matthew Deller and Philip Cantu have resigned from the Board. Richard DeerTrack was appointed by Ed Wilmot, to an unexpired term from March 9, 2006 through May 2007. Our nomination packet was prepared by the staff and forwarded by Chris Houston to Ed Wilmot for his signature and submittal to DOE/HQ. Those members who have been nominated for appointment for another term are: Fran Berting, Barbara Gonzales, Erlinda Gonzales, J.D. Campbell, Mary Pat Kraemer and Chris Timm. I will be recruiting members through newspaper articles regarding the mission of the CAB and its work. We met with Governor James Mountain of San Ildefonso Pueblo, and he committed to appointing a representative from San Ildefonso Pueblo to the NNMCAB. We will meet with the other Accord Pueblo Governors in April.

**Executive Committee Meeting:** The committee met on February  $7^{th}$  and on March  $7^{th}$ . The committee heard reports from the Chair, Committee Chairs, the DDFO and the Executive Director. The committee approved Adm. Procedure, 06-01, on Feb. 7th. The Committee approved the Final Agenda for the March 29th Board Meeting. The Committee began formulating the Agenda for the Board Retreat and will dedicate the April ExCom to finalizing this Agenda. The Committee also formalized the process for making requests for information and presentations from LANL, DOE, NMED or EPA.

## Meetings attended by the Executive Director:

40

41

42 43

44

45

46

47

48 49 February 7th meeting with Mary Ann Kelly, Smith Auditorium Re: GW Forum

February 7<sup>th</sup> Groundwater Forum Planning Committee Meeting

February 7th Executive Committee Meeting

February 8<sup>th</sup> meeting with Veronica Rodriguez, Senator Domenici's Office February 8th meeting with Chris Romero and Sarah Cobb, Cong. Udall's office

February 8<sup>th</sup> meeting with Secretary Ron Curry, NMED

February 8th meeting with Governor James Mountain, San Ildefonso Pueblo

February 8<sup>th</sup> meeting with Ed Wilmot, LASO Manager February 16<sup>th</sup>, sat in on SSAB Chairs' Conference Call

February 16<sup>th</sup>, sat in on Board Member Interview February 17<sup>th</sup>, meeting with Sagebrush Inn Staff Re: Board Retreat in Taos

March 7th, staff meeting with Chris Houston

March 7<sup>th</sup>, Executive Committee Meeting

March 9th, Groundwater Forum Planning Committee Meeting

March 15th, staff meeting with Chris Houston

March 15<sup>th</sup>, Waste Management Committee Meeting March 16<sup>th</sup>, meeting with Bill Tilley, SFCC staff regarding March 29<sup>th</sup> Meeting

March 23<sup>rd</sup>, Meeting with J. D. Campbell

50 51 52

53

54

Board Meeting Preparations: I prepared the Draft Agenda for the March 29th. Board Meeting and forwarded it to the Federal Register on February 16<sup>th</sup>, 2006. I made all arrangements at the Santa Fe Community College. Meeting packets were mailed out on

1 March 22. An advertisement for the meeting was placed in The Albuquerque Journal 2345678 Santa Fe. I have scheduled the Santa Fe Community College through November 2006, and I have reserved the Sagebrush Inn for the Board Retreat in May 2006. **Office Management:** The staff supported all committee meetings with preparation of notices, agendas and minutes and followed-up on any requests of the committees, the Chairman and the DDFO. The staff has also supported the Groundwater Forum Planning Committee with Agendas, Notices, a Draft GW Forum Brochure, a Draft Public 9 Involvement Plan, contracting with a facilitator and a video technician for the Forum, in 10 addition to arranging for an hour of radio show with the Chair and another CAB member 11 to advertise the Forum. Arrangements will also be made to air the Forum proceedings 12 on Pac-8, (Santa Fe) Pac-6 (Los Alamos) and Local Channel 2 in Taos. 13 14 SSAB Semi-Annual Chairs' Meeting: The Meeting is scheduled Sept. 6-8, 2006. 15 I have entered into a contract with Hotel La Fonda for this event. The Hotel has offered 16 a \$99.00 government rate the weekend before, during and after the meeting. I will be 17 asking different contractors to help host the breaks and the reception for the meeting. We 18 are expecting 80 to 100 people. 19 20 Issues Not Resolved and Estimated Completion Date: 21 22 Execution of Support Services Contract between DOE and ATA Services. ECD: Jan. 31, 23 2006. Completed Jan. 31, 2006. 24 25 Federal Register Notice for March Board Meeting: ECD: February 28, 2006. 26 Completed Feb. 16<sup>th</sup>. 27 28 The NNMCAB will be hosting the SSAB Chairs' Meeting. Sept. 6-8, 2006. 29 30 Next Board Meeting: Board Retreat and Meeting on May 19th and 20th in Taos. 31 Please plan to come in the evening of May 18th, as we will get started early on Friday, 32 May 19<sup>th</sup>." 33 34 IV. Committee Reports 35 1. Community Involvement (CI) Committee 36 Mr. Quintana acted as the reporting member for the CI Committee. The CI 37 Committee has reviewed their work plan and is following stated objectives by visiting the 38 websites of relevant agencies in accordance with the CAB's mission. The Committee 39 members are currently conducting a website review of 5 websites. The focus of the 40 review was to try to locate information on instances of Chromium contamination at 41 LANL on the websites and the ease of navigation to find specified information. Overall, 42 the CI Committee found the NMED website to have the most readily available 43 information on Chromium. Secondly, the CI Committee has assisted in the planning of 44 the CAB Forum on Groundwater. Members reviewed the Public Outreach materials for 45 the Forum prepared by Ms. Novak. 46 2. Environmental Monitoring, Surveillance and Remediation (EMSR) Committee 47 Ms. Henline, the Committee Vice Chair, acted as the reporting member for the EMSR 48 Committee. She stated that EMSR Committee members have been reviewing and 49 addressing items in their Work Plan. 50 Top items of study are listed below: 51 The Committee discussed chromium concentrations measured at Well R-28, as a 1-

11-05 Chromium presentation follow-up. Mr. Timm made a formal request for the

52

forthcoming LANL Chromium Interim Measures Work Plan (IMWP). Mr. Johansen, NNSA, stated the Work Plan would be ready for public distribution by March 2006. Mr. Longmire, LANL, has been investigating the types of chromium measured at R-28. The Committee discussed the two types of chromium that has been measured to result in a total chromium value.

Trivalent chromium is naturally present in the regional aquifer in concentrations that range from approximately 2 to 6 parts per billion (ppb). Chromium hexavalent (CrVI) compounds, often called hexavalent chromium, exist in several forms and is recognized as a human carcinogen. Hexavalent chromium has been identified as an industrial byproduct of Potassium Dichromate, which was used at LANL as an anti-corrosion agent in cooling towers from 1950 to 1975. Potassium dichromate can be used in the manufacture of the following products: catalyst for the production of chromium metal, photographic engraving and lithographic chemicals, pyrotechnics and explosives, as anti-corrosion coating and as an analytical standard.

- Chromium (VI) compounds fact sheet: <a href="http://www.npi.gov.au/database/substance-info/profiles/25.html#sourcesof">http://www.npi.gov.au/database/substance-info/profiles/25.html#sourcesof</a> .

The close proximity of Well R-28 to PM3, which is a major water supply well, has created some public concern. The Committee planned to closely monitor this issue and review the IMWP immediately upon public release. The Committee requested and received a technical presentation from LANL regarding a history of groundwater quality at R-28 showing dates sampled since the well was completed and chromium concentrations measured. Also, a summary of the results of the QC/QA programs applied to these samples with respect to chromium.

Jean Dewart, Program Manager for Pathways Protection / LANL provided a presentation to the EMSR Committee at their regular March meeting. Topics discussed in Ms. Dewart's presentation:

- Any data related to the existence of sediment or shallow groundwater sampling results for Chromium in Mortandad Canyon.
- Any data related to Chromium concentrations present in the LANL wastewater treatment plant outfalls in both Mortandad and Sandia Canyons.
- Any information available related to the possibility that the source of this Chromium could be from discharges to Sandia Canyon given the proximity of the confluence of the two canyons to well R-28.

The EMSR Committee also formed a Sub-Committee to review and draft comments regarding recent EPA permits for LANL, specifically EPA NPDES Permit No. NM0028355-- for LANL. Dr. Berting and Mr. Porterfield agreed to serve on the Sub Committee and draft and submit comments.

The EMSR Committee also discussed recommendations from Michael Dale, DOE/OB, regarding proposed independent environmental monitoring at LANL during FY 2006. (Based on EPA Federal Facilities group request for suggestions on ways to use existing ENV funding from the January 25, 2006 CAB meeting.)

### 4. Waste Management Committee

Mr. Jordan, the Chairman, acted as the reporting member for the WM Committee. He stated that the WM Committee has discussed their Work Plan and continues to act upon Area G Forum initiatives. Mr. Jordan presented the WM Committee's MDA H Fracture Flow Study Sub Committee Report. (Transcripts have been placed on file.)

```
1
            Ad Hoc Committee on Bylaws and Administrative Procedures (Tabled until May
 2
            2006 CAB Retreat.)
 3
     Mr. Jordan, Ad Hoc Committee Chair, agreed to provide a report on the CAB Bylaws and
 4
     Administrative Procedures at the May 2006 CAB Retreat.
 5
 6
 7 V. Reports from Ex-Officio Members
 8
     1. EPA
 9
     Mr. Troy Hill for Mr. Rich Mayer
     (Transcripts have been placed on file.)
10
11
12
     2. UC/LANL
13
     Mr. Hargis
14
     (Transcripts have been placed on file.)
15
16
     3. NMED
17
     Mr. Bearzi
18
     (Transcripts have been placed on file.)
19
20 VI. DOE/LASO and UC/LANL Business
21
     Mr. Wilmot
22
       • LANL Five Year Plan
23
         FY '07 Budget
24
          Role and Future of the NNMCAB
25
          What Issues Would DOE Like the CAB to Concentrate On Over the Next Fiscal
26
           Year?
27
         Closure and Expansion of Area G.
28
          Groundwater Issues
29
          Other Issues
30
     (Transcripts have been placed on file.)
31
32 VII. PUBLIC COMMENT
33
      1. Mr. Mello, LASG, signed up for public comment.
34
     Greg Mello, Los Alamos Study Group (LASG), signed up for public comment. Mr.
     Mello stated that the LASG would like to see the CAB receive more specific information
35
36
     from the LAB and DOE. The presentation information the CAB is getting in response to
37
     requests seems very generalized and does illuminate any "new" information. According
38
     to Mr. Mello, the information seems to be repetitive and non-specific and overall not up
39
     to professional industry standards. He indicated that he had been studying Lab activities
40
     for many years and still can not say specifically what are the quantities of waste being
41
     produced, what radionuclides have been released during production and what the
42
     schedules for production are. He hoped the CAB could get more specific information
43
     from the DOE and LANL dur to their FACA Charter but so far he considers the
44
     information to be the same generalized publicly available information that has been
45
     handed out for the last 10 or so years. He specifically referenced the LANL Area G Low
```

1	Level Waste Cost Disposal Study which he considered to be well below industry
2	standards. (Transcripts have been placed on file.)
3	
4	2. Mr. Bremer, Madrid Land Owner's Association, signed up for public comment.
5	Mr. Bremer passed out copies of a Madrid Land Owners Association resolution to
6 7	recommend no further expansion of Area G which is similar to those issued by the Taos Town Council, City of Santa Fe and the CAB's Recommendation to the DOE,
8	Recommendation 2005-10. (Transcripts have been placed on file.)
9	recommendation 2003 10. (Transcripts have been placed on inc.)
10	VIII. Consideration and Action on CAB Letter to Senator Pete Domenici regarding
11	budget reductions in the Environmental Management Program. The Board concurred
12	with the intent of the letter. Dr. Rudnick made a motion to approve sending the letter
13	with the same intent with some re-focused wording. Ms. Henline seconded the
14	motion. The motion to approve the intent of the budget reduction letter to Senator
15 16	Domenici was approved by acclamation.
17	IX. Presentation from Jim Orban & Dave McInroy, DOE/LASO and UC/LANL,
18	regarding Progress and Alternatives for Closure of MDA-L and MDA-G in the
19	Corrective Measures Evaluations, for submittal to NMED. The Chair introduced the
20	guest speakers, Jim Orban & Dave McInroy, DOE/LASO and UC/LANL, whose subject
21	report was a presentation regarding Progress and Alternatives for Closure of MDA-L and
22	MDA-G in the Corrective Measures Evaluations, for submittal to NMED. (Transcripts
23	and Ms. Dewart's PowerPoint Presentation have been placed on file.)
24 25	X. Response to NNMCAB Recommendations
26	Mr. Rodriguez addressed the CAB Recommendations that are still awaiting a formal
27	written response from the DOE.
28	(Transcripts have been placed on file.)
29	
30	XI. Adjournment
31	The next regular bi-monthly meeting of the NNMCAB has been scheduled for May
32 33	20, 2006 from 9:00 to 12:00 p.m. The meeting will be held at the Sage Brush Inn and Conference Center, Taos, New Mexico. The agenda for Board meetings can be viewed
34	on the CAB's website at the following address: http://www.wnnmcab.org.
35	Ms. Gonzales made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Quintana seconded the
36	motion. The CAB meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m.
37	
38	
39	Respectfully submitted,
40	
	Jeloupbell
41	
42	
43	J. D. Campbell
44	Chair, NNMCAB

# 1 Appendix:

- 2 <sup>1.</sup> January 25, 2006 CAB Minutes.
- 3 <sup>2</sup> Executive Director's Report.
- 4 3. Letter from NMED to DOE dated December 29, 2005 regarding "Interim Measures
- Work Plan Requirement Groundwater Contaminants Detected in the Regional Aquifer at R-28 LANL EPA ID# NM0890010515."
- 7 4. Action Items from March 8, 2006 EMSR Committee Meeting.
- 8 5. MDA H Fracture Flow Study Waste Management Sub Committee Report.
- 9 6. Madrid Land Owners Association Resolution.
- 10 <sup>7.</sup> LANL Presentation LA-UR-06-2280.
- 11 8. 3-29-06 CAB Meeting Audio Tapes.

12 13 14

15

16 17

18

19

20

21 22

# **Public Notice:**

- All NNMCAB meetings are recorded in accordance with the Federal Advisory Committee Act. Audiotapes have been placed on file at the NNMCAB office in Santa Fe, New Mexico.
- Reference documents listed in the Appendix section of these minutes are available for review at the CAB office in Santa Fe.

For more information regarding audio transcription or any information referenced to or contained herein these minutes, please call the CAB office at (505)-989-1662.

2324